CRYSTAL LAKE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 2014
HELD AT THE CRYSTAL LAKE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Haydéh30 p.m. On roll call, members Esposito,
Gavle, Goss, Jouron, Skluzacek, and Hayden weseipte Members Batastini and Greenman were
absent.

James Richter Il, Planning and Economic Developrivariager, Katie Cowlin and Elizabeth Maxwell,
both Planners, were present from Staff.

Mr. Hayden asked those in attendance to rise tohgai?ledge of Allegiance. He led those in attendan
in the Pledge.

Mr. Hayden welcomed the newest member of the Plgnand Economic Development Department,
Katie Cowlin.

Mr. Hayden stated that this meeting was being teéenow as well as recorded for future playback on
the City’s cable station.

APPROVE MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 20, 2014 PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
MEETING

Mr. Skluzacek moved to approve the minutes fromAtgust 20, 2014 Planning and Zoning
Commission meeting as presented. Mr. Gavle secbtiemotion. On roll call, all members present
voted aye. Motion passed.

2013-60 LAPETINA — 8611 Huntley Road- PUBLIC HEARING
The petitioner is requesting a continuation uti@ October 15, 2014 PZC meeting.

Mr. Richter stated that Staff has reviewed the UBQY] it stated that a petition cannot be continued
more than 2 months without renotification.

Mr. Esposito moved to deny the continuation reqtms2013-60 Lapetina Annexation. Mr. Skluzacek
seconded the motion. On voice vote, all membetsdvaye. Motion passed.

2014-36 AFFINITY FOR GAMING — 19 E. Berkshire Dr. — PUBLIC HEARING
UDO Text Amendment to allow a Hobby, Toy and Ganweés as a Special Use Permit in the B-1
Neighborhood Commercial zoning district; and Spddie Permit for Affinity for Gaming.

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign had been postedsaltl the surrounding property owners were ndtifie
and the Certificate of Publication was in the fiMr. Hayden waived the reading of the legal notice



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 17, 2014
PAGE 2

without objection.

Michael Purn and Justin Maher were present to semitetheir petition. Mr. Hayden asked if there was
anything the petitioners wished to add since thigiest was discussed at length at a previous mgeetin
Mr. Purn said they will be offering discounts tmp& who car pool to tournaments. Also, if they
discover there is a large demand for the weekemthémnents, they will break it up into two separate
groups for morning and afternoon. Mr. Hayden saé@te was concern at the last meeting with allowing
this type of use in this district because of pattmarking issues. Now the petitioner is requesthe
amendment to the UDO to require this type of bussrie receive a Special Use Permit.

There was no one in the public who wished to contraarthis petition. The public portion was closed
at this time.

Mr. Goss asked if anything, other than parkingsedia red flag for staff such as loitering. MsxMall
said that would be a Police issue. If the busieesstice that type of problem they usually cadl th
Police to take care of any crowd. Mr. Goss askéuki petitioner agreed with conditions listed e t
Staff Report. Mr. Purn said yes. Mr. Goss saiavbald like to add to condition #2 that no parkiag
allowed in any of the businesses along VirginiadR@aich as Nick’s Pizza and Pub.

Mr. Esposito asked if there are places to parkdbésy Mr. Purn said there is one rack by the
convenience store but that is the only one. HEbeilrequesting additional racks from the property
owner.

Mr. Jouron said now that the parking issue has baaan care of, what type of sign the business will
have. Mr. Purn said they will use the sign cabfr@n Laser Tag, but change the face.

Mr. Gavle asked how many people the petitionereapecting for the tournaments. Mr. Purn said they
will have 6 tables for 36 people. He said if tineye a larger number, they could rent space elsewhe
such as the Holiday Inn. They will also have regitson on-line. They expect possibly 30 peoplg, b
can accommodate 36. Mr. Purn said they can’t crinecplayers. The games require a lot of math and
concentration. If players feel they are crampkeey twvon’t come back. Mr. Gavle asked if the player
are beaten early in the tournament, will they beedoMr. Purn said a round takes about 45 minates t
play. Usually there are 4 rounds and some plastassto watch the game to improve their skills.. Mr
Gavle asked what the age groups that attend towmiznare. Mr. Purn said they are middle and high
school age and then there is the college age e 204

Mr. Hayden asked about the incentives for the wisindlr. Purn said the participants pay a regismat
fee and the winners get merchandise. The winnsrtge most and so on down the list. Usuallydfyth
are young players, he tries to have everyone wimesioing. Mr. Purn added that this is considered a
skill game by the State of lllinois and there iscash prizes involved.

Mr. Goss moved to approve the UDO Text Amendmeatltav Hobby, Toy and Game Stores as a Special



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 17, 2014
PAGE 3

Use in the B-1 Neighborhood Commercial zoning disand to approve the Special Use Permit to adow
Hobby, Toy and Game Store for Affinity for Gamingl® E. Berkshire with the following conditions:

The Table 2-300 illustration below shows how the ordinance would be changed.

TABLE 2-300 Permitted Uses Table

Service Uses

FIE|RE|R1|R2 |R3A|R3B|O|B1| B2 | B4 | ML M

Sporting Hobby, S P P
Goods, Hobby, | Toy and

Book and Game

Music Stores Stores

1. Approved plans, reflecting staff and advisorafgbrecommendations, as approved by the City
Council:

A. Application (Michael Purn, received 07/23/14)

B. Project Description and Floor Plan (Purn, reedi07/23/14)

2. The applicant shall be responsible to have aatequarking in the shopping center for this use. N
vehicles shall be parked on the street or in tteeggation or daycare lo® _any parking lots for
businesses along Virginia Road

3. The petitioner shall instruct the tournamentipgrants to park in the spaces directly adjacetihée
tenant suite and then in the spaces along the ptarrat the ends of the aisles of the larger pgr&iea
along Berkshire in order to have the least impacadjacent businesses as possible.

4. The petitioner shall address all of the reviemmments and requirements of the Community
Development and Fire Rescue Departments.

Mr. Jouron seconded the motion. On roll callnadimbers voted aye. Motion passed.

2014-39 HEISLER — 131 Baldwin Ave— PUBLIC HEARING

Variation from Article 3-200, from the minimum sided rear yard setback requirements for a principal
structure. The principal structure will have appnaately a 5-foot setback for the rear-yard and a 3-
foot setback for the side-yard instead of the Afi-fear-yard and the 7-foot side-yard requirement.

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign had been postedsaltl the surrounding property owners were ndtifie
and the Certificate of Publication was in the fiMr. Hayden waived the reading of the legal notice
without objection.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 17, 2014
PAGE 4

Jim Heisler was present to represent his petitidn. Heisler showed a more recent plat of survey fo
the property than the one that is in the PZC mesilpackets. He is asking to make the roof linktal
to allow for storage. Mr. Heisler said he has¢haetive sump pumps and needs a storage area. He
added that his request meets the standards et stdff report.

There was no one in the public who wished to contraarthis petition. The public portion was closed
at this time.

Mr. Goss asked which way the windows shown on keagions face. Mr. Heisler said toward North
Shore. Mr. Goss asked if the breezeway will remailn. Heisler said yes that he planned on leaiting
as itis. He said it is nice to have when the Wwelats bad and you are unloading groceries. MesSGo
said this request meets the Findings of Fact.

Mr. Heisler said his home needs a new roof and diddvike to do this all at one time so he needs to
move forward quickly.

Mr. Skluzacek said he has no problem with the requiir. Jouron said this will look nice.

Mr. Esposito moved to approve the Variations frorticde 3-200 to allow: A. A 4-foot minimum side
yard setback from the required 7-foot; and B. Afdét rear yard setback from the required 20-footsfo
principal structure at 131 Baldwin Avenue with tb#towing conditions:

1. Approved plans, reflecting staff and advisorafgbrecommendations, as approved by the City
Council:
A. Application (Heisler, received 08/25/14)
B. Plat of Survey (John Jennings Surveyor, datéd8388, received 08/25/14)
C. Proposed Breezeway Extension Dormer Additiorp({R& Studio, dated 08/18/14, received
08/25/14)

2. Petitioner has the option to enclose the ar@agdnately below the existing breezeway/connecting
link to the house, provided that there are no stimat or stormwater concerns. A permit will be
required for this action to be completed.

3. The petitioner shall address all of the reviemmments and requirements of the Community
Development Department, Public Works Departmerd,fire Rescue Department.

Mr. Skluzacek seconded the motion. On roll cdllimembers voted aye. Motion passed.

2014-38 FORGE FITNESS — 141 N. Main St- PUBLIC HEARING
Variation from Article 4-200, from the required nbar of parking spaces.




PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 17, 2014
PAGE 5

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign had been postedsaltl the surrounding property owners were ndtifie
and the Certificate of Publication was in the fiMr. Hayden waived the reading of the legal notice
without objection.

Michael Kelly was present to represent his petititr. Kelly said he wants to lease the adjacenana
space to allow his current members an area tachtreithout worrying about someone using free
weights.

Robert Seymour, 151 N. Main Street, said he owafittme immediately to the north of this site. Mr.
Seymour said it is great that this business is, lrethere is a problem with the traffic. Therasva
fence put up adjacent to the alley which helpshibraes in that direction, but there is not mucheegk
the headlights from shining into his kitchen. Eeymour said he would prefer Option C. This i®gyv
successful business and sometimes it is hard noatwund in this lot. Some people use the grassy a
to turn around. Also people do park in non-parlspgces. Mr. Seymour added that this lot is uged b
other businesses in the area. There is a siga Rdsita telling customers there is additional paylky
the gym.

There was no one else in the public who wisheatoroent on this petition. The public portion was
closed at this time.

Mr. Goss asked about the current users of the patki. Mr. Kelly said there are four users thare
the spaces. Mr. Goss asked if the property owilemake the necessary improvements/repairs. Mr.
Kelly said yes. He added that Option C would bedywith the possibility of a fence. Mr. Goss said
there would be no place to put the plowed snow. G&rss asked if the attic or basement will be dsed
training. Mr. Kelly said no. Mr. Goss said thissuseing in the downtown district meets the FindioQs
Fact. He asked if the new brewery has had an itgratheir parking. Mr. Kelly said he doesn’t lesie
So.

Mr. Gavle said Option C would max out the petitidgaéuture options. Mr. Kelly said that 60 to 7086
the users of the lot are the gym members. Thearestised by other businesses such as LaRosith@and
new ice cream shop. Those users park in the t@ldout 20 minutes while the gym members will be
there for 2 hours.

Mr. Skluzacek asked if the petitioner should pusigms. Mr. Kelly said there are signs that arstga.

Mr. Hayden said he didn’t have much to add. Hd #a good news is there is a parking problem which
means the business is successful. He said thedsssis open hours where City parking lots in tea a
are free. Mr. Hayden asked the petitioner if he day issues with the conditions in the Staff Repor

Mr. Kelly said no.

Ms. Cowlin reminded the Commissioners that if Opt@ would be implemented, the landscaping that
is currently there would be removed and additiggaalement be placed there. Mr. Hayden suggested a



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 17, 2014
PAGE 6

board on board fence. Mr. Richter said that wqddsibly create a sight line problem. He showed an
aerial photo of the property and showed what aneagd be removed.

Mr. Esposito asked the objector, Mr. Seymour, wipyigh B would not be better. Mr. Seymour said
Option B would be better for him with less headhtsgy He asked if that would require a variationtfee
number of parking spaces.

Mr. Hayden asked how many new clients they antteipath the expansion. Mr. Kelly said they have
just about maxed out. They don’t advertise angl ttoe't want to be a Charter Fitness-type business.
They want to add the space to make it more conuefoe the current clients. He said that a nationa
statistic is 50 to 60% of people don't use theimmerships. Mr. Hayden said if the business is not
adding more clients, but only to increase theirasguootage, technically no additional parking vebloé
needed except that it is required in the UDO. iKélly said he prefers Option B and he will speakwi
the members about the additional City lots thateamglable. He said Option C would have more head
lights shine in the neighbor’'s home.

Mr. Hayden polled the Commissioners. They weragreement that Option B would be best for all
concerned.

Mr. Goss moved to approve the Variation from treuneed number of parking spaces for Forge Fitness a
141 N. Main Street with the following conditions:

1. Approved plans, reflecting staff and advisorafgbrecommendations, as approved by the City
Council:

A. Application (Michael Kelly, Forge Fitness, reced 08/25/14)

B. Site Plan (received 08/25/14)

C. Parking Options (staff, received 1/10/12)

2. A variation from the required number of parkspaces is hereby granted.

3 Addltlonal parklnq spaces shall be paved and strlmbas shown in Optlon BPavemeaddmenal

4. If the facility is expanded in size or intensdttyany time, the petitioner shall be requireddosuilt
with staff to determine if a further variation isaessary.

5. If more than 25 parking spaces are provided,(By@ccessible parking spaces are required per the
lllinois Accessibility Code.

6. An engineering plan must be submitted showiegtioposed parking lot and grading indicating how
the drainage will flow to existing or proposed stastructures.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 17, 2014
PAGE 7

7. Petitioner shall work with staff to augment taadscaping along Prairie Street and the alley to
prevent as far as possible, the light from the alekifrom shining into residences.

8. The petitioner shall address all of the reviemmments and requirements of the Community
Development Department, Public Works Departmerd,fdre Rescue Department.

Mr. Esposito seconded the motion. On roll callp@mbers voted aye. Motion passed.

REPORT FROM PLANNING

- Teckler Blvd Self Storage - SE corner Teckler @fficial Rd - Final PUD

- Business Anniversaries for: Kinder Care on Beirdesh 30 years; Charles River Development — 30
years; and Autotrol — 50 years.

Mr. Richter reviewed the items for the next meetimgOctober 1, 2014.

COMMENTS FROM THE COMMISSION

Mr. Hayden asked about the pink building on Rodteéar Anderson VW. Mr. Richter said another
business that is behind this building will be usitngMr. Hayden asked about the K-Mart closingr. M
Richter said Sears Holdings are making changesmaitile. He added that there is still term on the
lease.

Mr. Hayden again welcomed Ms. Cowlin to City Starfid looked forward to working with her.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:45 p.m.



